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| VISION AND MISSION

VISION

Is to achieve and then remain as the most progressive and profitable
Company offering a wide range of quality products and service provider

in terms of industry standards and stakeholders interest.

MISSION

The Company shall achieve its mission through a continuous process of

having sourced, developed, implemented and managed the best leading

edge technology, industry best practice, human resource and innovative
of superior products, performance and service quality that fully meet
the needs of our customers, better returns to our stakeholders and a

better quality of life to the employees.
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CODE OF CONDUCT

CODE OF CONDUCT

International Knitwear Limited being engaged in the Local and export of garments
and providing dyeing facilities is:

- Committed to provide quality products and services to all its local and
international customers.

- Further committed to comply with all applicable Regulatory and
Customers’ requirements, thereby ensuring achievement of customers’
continuous satisfaction.

= An equal opportunity employer which does not differentiate between its
employees on the basis of cast, creed, sex or religious affiliations.

- Always willing, through a liberal training policy, to educate, train and
groom its employees to enhance their professionalism, commitment and
personal growth leading to achievement of greater goals.

Committed to the well-being of its employees by adopting generous welfare
policies and practices.

In return International Knitwear Limited expects from its employees that:

As representatives of the Company they must at all times behave
appropriately and strictly follow all rules and regulations of the Company.

- They must devote their time, attention, abilities and energy exclusively
for the performance of their duties and must not engage themselves in
any other occupation, business or employment whatsoever without prior
written consent of the Company.

- They must not disclose any confidential information pertaining to the
business of the Company to any person inside or outside the company.

- They must protect all records, reports and other published or
unpublished documents of the Company and promptly hand over all
these to the Company upon leaving, for whatever reason, the
employment of the Company. They must not also remove any or all of the
said records, reports and documents from the premises of the Company
without appropriate authorization.
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| NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the Twenty Ninth {29th) Annual General Meeting of International
Knitwear Limited will be held on Monday, October 28, 2019 at 02:00 p.m. at F-2AfL S..T.E
Karachito transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS
1. To confirm minutes of the Annual General Meeting held on Octcber 27, 2018,

2. To receive, cansider and adopt the Annual Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year
ended June 30, 2019, together with the Directors' and Auditors’ reports thereon.

3. Todeclare and approve final cash dividend @ 5% i.e.PKR 0.50 per share for the year ended June 30, 2013,
as recommended by the Board of Directors.

4. To appolnt auditors of the Company and fix their remuneration for the year ending June 30, 2020. The
present auditors M/s RSM AvaisHyderliaguatNauman, Chartered Accountants, retire and being eligible
have offered themselves for re-appointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS

Ordinary Resolution:
5. To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s) the following lution as an

ordinary resolution:

RESOLVED that the transaction carried out by the Company in the normal course of business with related
parties during the year ended June 30, 2019 be and are hereby ratified, approved and confirmed.

6. To approve the remuneration of Executive Director (s} including the Chief Executive Officer and, if thought
appropriate, ta pass with or without modification(s) the follawing resolutians as ordinary resalution:

RESOLVED that the Chief Executive Officer and one full-time working director will be paid an amount not
exceeding PKR 15 million which includes allowances and other benefits as per terms of thelr employment
for the year ending June 30, 2020 be and is hereby approved. Further, the Chief Executive Officer and
Executive Director are entitled for free use of Company maintained transport for official and private
purposes as approved by the Board:

OTHER BUSINESS

7. Totransact any other business with the permission of the Chair.

By Order of the Board
?,ﬂ.ﬁew
Javed Khan
Company Secretary

Karachi: October 05, 2019
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| NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTES:

1. CLOSURE OF SHARE TRANSFER BOOK
The Register of Members of the Company will remain closed and no transfer of shares will
be accepted for registration from October 22, 2019 to October 28, 2019 {(both days
inclusive). Transfers received in order at the office of the Company’s Share Registrar:

CDC Share Registrar Services Limited

Share Registrar Department

CDC House, 99-B, Block ‘B', S.M.C.H.S,

Main Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi-74400.

Telephone (Toll Free) 0800-23275 / Fax: (92-21) 34326053
Email: info@cdcsrsl.com / Website: www.cdcsrsl.com

at the close of business on October 21, 2019will be treated in time for the purpose of
determination of entitlement to the transferees.

A member entitled to attend, speak and vote at the Annual General Meeting is entitled to
appoint a proxy to attend, speak and vote instead of him/her. A proxy need not be a
member, Proxy in order to be effective must be duly signed, witnessed, stamped and
deposited at the office of the Share Registrar not less than 48 hours before the meeting.
The shareholder/proxy shall produce his/her original CNIC or passport at the time of the
meeting.

CDC account holders will further have to follow the under mentioned guidelines as laid
down in Circular 1 dated January 26, 2000 issued by the Securities and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan.

A. FOR ATTENDING THE MEETING:

» |n case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder and/or the person
whose securities are in group account, and their registration details are uploaded as
per the CDC Regulations, shall authenticate his identity by showing his original
Computerized National Identity Card (CNIC) or original passport at the time of
attending the Meeting,

« In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors' resolution/power of attorney with
specimen signature of the nominee shall be produced (unless it has been provided
earlier) at the time of the Meeting,
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| NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

A. FOR APPOINTING PROXIES:
= |n case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder and/or the person
whose securities are in group account, and their registration details are uploaded as
per the CDC Regulations, shall submit the proxy form as per the above requirements

& The proxy form shall be witnessed by two persons whose names, addresses and
CNIC numbers shall be mentioned on the form.

o Attested copies of CNIC or the passport, of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall
be furnished with the proxy form.

» The proxy shall produce his original CNIC or original passport at the time of the
Meeting.

» In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors' resolution/power of attorney
with specimen signature shall be submitted (unless it has been provided earlier)
along with proxy form to the Company.

2. CONSENT FOR THE FACILITY OF VIDEO-LINK
Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act 2017, the company may on the demand of
members at least 7 days before the general meeting residing in a city, who hold at least
10% of the total paid up capital of the Company, provide the facility of video-link to such
members enabling them to participate in its annual general meeting. If you wish to take
benefit of this facility, please fill the form available on the Company’s website and submit it
to the Company at its registered address at least 10 days prior to the date of the meeting.

The Company will intimate members the venue of the video conference facility, if required criteria
have been fulfilled, at least 7 days before the date of general meeting alang with complete
information necessary to enable them ta access such facility.

3. SUBMISSION OF COPIES OF CNIC AND NTN CERTIFICATE (MANDATORY)

«  Pursuant to the directives of the SECP, the dividend of the shareholders whose
CNIC / SNIC ar NTN (in case of corporate entities), are not available with the
Share Registrar shall be withheld. Shareholders are therefore, requested to
submit a copy of their valid CNIC / SNIC (if not already provided) to the
Company'’s Share Registrar, COC Share Registrar Services Limited.
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| NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

4. PAYMENT OF CASH DIVIDEND ELECTRONICALLY {E-MANDATE)
In accordance with the provisions of section 242 of the Companies Act, 2017and Companies
(Distribution of Dividend) Regulations,2017 it is mandatory that dividend payable in cash shall only
be paid through electronic mode directly into the bank account designated by the entitled
shareholder. Notice in this regard has already been published earlier in newspapers as per
Regulations. All shareholders are once again requested to provide details of their bank mandate
specifying (i) title as account, (i) accaunt number, (iii} IBAN number {iv) bank name and (v} branch
name, code and address, to the Company’s Share Registrar. Shareholders who hold shares with
Participants / CDC Share Registrar Services Limited are advised to provide the mandate to the
concerned Broker.

5. WITHHOLDING TAX ON DIVIDEND

Government of Pakistan through Finance Act, 2019 has made certain amendments in

Section 150 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 whereby different rates are prescribed for

deduction of withholding tax en the amount of dividend paid by the companies. These

taxes are as under:
1. For filers of income tax returns 15%

2. For non-filers of income tax returns 30%

Shareholders who have filed their returns are advised to make sure that their names are
entered into latest Active Tax Payer List (ATL) provided on the website of FBR at the time of
dividend payment, otherwise they shall be treated as persons not appearing in ATL and tax
on their cash dividend will be deducted at the rate of 30% instead of 15%.
6. WITHHOLDING TAX ON DIVIDEND IN CASE OF JOINT ACCOUNT HOLDERS

In order to enable the Company to follow the directives of the regulations to determine
shareholding ratio of the Joint Account Holder(s) {where shareholding has not been
determined by the Principal Shareholder) for deduction of withholding tax on dividends of
the Company, shareholders are requested to furnish the shareholding ratio details of
themselves as Principal shareholder and Joint Holders, to the Company’s Share Registrar, in
writing as per format given below enabling the Company to compute withholding tax of
each shareholder accordingly.

Principal shareholder Joint Shareholder
Company | Folio/CDS
Name AL::’“"' ::lal Name & Shareholding Name & Shareholding
e eS| CNIC No. Proportion CNIC No. Proportion
(no. of shares) {no. of shares)

The required information must reach our Share Registrar within 10 days of this notice;
otherwise it will be assumed that the shares are equally held by Principal Shareholder and
Joint Holder({s).




€5 [nternational Knitwear Limited

| NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

7. EXEMPTION FROM DEDUCTION OF INCOME TAX/ZAKAT
Members seeking exemption from deduction of income tax or are eligible for deduction at
a reduced rate are reguested to submit a valid tax exemption certificate or necessary
documentary evidence as the case may be. Members desiring non-deduction of zakat are
also requested to submit a valid declaration for non-deduction of zakat.

8. UNCLAIMED SHARES / DIVIDEND

Members of the Company are informed that in compliance with the provisions of Section
244 of the Companies Act, 2017, shares / dividend which remain unclaimed or

unpaid for a period of three years from the date it is due and payable will be vested with
the Federal Government after lapse of the time period as prescribed by the Securities and
Exchange Commission of Pakistan, if no claim is made by respective members. Accordingly,
all those members whose shares / dividend remain unclaimed or unpaid for the mentioned
period are once again requested to lodge their claims as the Company has already
dispatched notices in this respect to all such shareholders at their last known addresses,
where available with the Company.

9. DISTRIBUTION OF ANNUAL REPORT THROUGH EMAIL (OPTIONAL)
Pursuant to the provision of section 223(6) of the Companies Act, 2017, the companies are
permitted to circulate their annual financial statement, along with auditor’s repart, directors’
review report, etc. (“Annual Report”) and the notice of annual general meeting (“Notice”), to its
shareholder by email. Shareholders of the Company who wish to receive the Company’s Annual
Report and Notices of annual general meeting by email are requested to provide the completed
Electronic Communication Consent From (available on the Company’s Website),to the Company's
Share Registrar.

10. AVAILABILITY OF AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ON COMPANY’S WEWBSITE
The audited financial statements of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2019 have
been placed at the Company’s website www.internationalknitwear.com.

11. FORM OF PROXY
Form of proxy is annexed at the end of annual report as well as available at Company's
website i.e., www.internationalknitwear.com

12. CHANGE OF ADDRESS

Members are requested to promptly notify to the Company’s Share Registrar of any
change in their addresses.
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| REVIEW REPORT BY THE CHAIRMAN

It gives me immense pleasure to communicate with our valued members and stakeholders to present the
financial and other information for the year ended June 30,2019, to apprise them on the averall
performance of the Board and effectiveness of the role played by the Board in achieving the Company's
objectives,

The Board of Directors is performing its duties in accordance with law and in the best interest of company
and its shareholders .As required under the Code of Corporate Governance, an annual evaluation of the
Board of Directors of International Knitwear Limited is carmied out. The purpose of this evaluation is to
ensure that the Board's overall performance and effectiveness is measured and benchmarked against
expectations in the context of objectives set for the Company.

For the financial year ended June 30, 2019, the Board's overall perfermance and effectiveness has been
assessed as Satisfactory. This is based on an evaluation of integral components, including vision,
mission and values; engagement in strategic planning; formulation of policies; monitoring the
organization's business activities; monitor financial resource management; effeclive fiscal oversight;
equitable treatment of all employees and efficiency in carrying out the Board's business.

International Knitwear Limited Complies with all the requirements set out in the Law with respect to the
compasition, procedures and meetings of the Board of Directors and its committees. Necessary Board
agenda and related supporting documents were duly made available fo the board in sufficient time prior to
the board and it committee meetings. The Board has exercised all its powers in accordance with relevant
laws and regulation and the non- executive and independent directors are equally involved in important
decisions of the board.

Here, | would like to place on record my sincere appreciation of our members and other stakeholders for
their continued trust and support to the management and the Company.

e
Karachi : WASEEM SHAFI
Dated: September 30, 2019 Chairman

10
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Assalam o Alaikum

The Board of Directors of International Knitwear Limited takes pleasure in presenting this report together
with the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2019,

Financial Position at a Glance

2019 2018 Percentage
Rupees Rupees
Net sales 451,098,967 393,230,773 14.72%
Gross profit 32,105,787 58,810,770 (45.41%)
Profit before taxation 14,748,652 17,337,290 {14.93%)
Profit after taxation 10,237,662 13,404,982 (23.63%)
Net eamings per share 1.06 1.39 {23.63%)

Business overview
Financial highlights of the year ended June 30, 2019 are summarized below:

In the year ending June 30, 2019 business grew about 15%.The Company has achieved Net sales of Rs.
451.089 million as compared to Rs.383.23 million. Profit before taxation was 14.74 million as compared to
Rs. 17.33 million for the corresponding period last year.

Sales recorded an increase of Rs.57.86 million in the current year as compared 1o sales in the previous
year ended 30, June 2018. Gross profit of the Company was Rs.32.10 million in the current year as
compared to gross profit of Rs.58.81 million of the |ast year.

During the year the Company has performed well and achieved a required volume of export orders as
well as exlended demand in local segment which helped in full ulilization of operational capacities and
absarption of fixed production overheads.

Sales

By the grace of the Almighty we have managed ta steadily increase sales by 14.72% to Rs.451.09 Million
on the back of volume, price increase and currency devaluation. This could be realized by consistent
supply of quality preducts to our valued clients internationally and naticnal wide.

Earnings per share

Earnings per share after taxation is Rs. 1.06 as compared to Rs. 1.39 in the |ast year earnings for the
shareholders.

11
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| DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Other Income

In other income the company realized and unrealized loss of Rs. 2.16 million against loss of Rs.22.30
million in the corresponding period last year. Dividend income during the year was Rs. 1.42 million
against Rs. 1.45 million against the corresponding pericd last year.

During the year under review the company has an Exchange gain of Rs, 11,09 including unrealized
exchange gain of Rs.5.31 million as compare in the previous year exchange gain of Rs.3.65 million
including unrealized exchange gain of Rs.1.15 million.

Capital Expenditure

The Company during the year made capital investment of Rs.10.49 million for expanding manufacturing
capacity, enhancing productivity and improving plant efficiency.

Dividend

The Board of Direciors Is pleased to announce a final cash dividend for the year ended June 30, 2019 at
5 % i.e. Re.0.50 per share (2018 Re. 0.50) in its meeting held on September 30, 2019.

Communication

The Company focuses on the importance of the communication with the sharsholders. The annual, half
yearly and quarterly reporis are distributed to them within the time specified in the Companies Act 2017,
The activities of the Company are updated on ifs website at www.internationalknitwear.com in a
designated section for investors containing relevant infermation on timely basis.

Material Changes

No material changes or commitments affecting the financial position of the Company has occurred
between the end of the financial year of the Company and the date of the repart.

Corporate Environment, Health & Social Responsibility

We strongly believe in maintaining the highest standards in health, safety and environment (HSE) to
ensure the well-being of the people who work with us as well as of the communities where we operate,
Our focus remains on improving all aspects of safety especially with regards to the safe, production,
delivery, storage and handling of the materials. Your company always ensures environment preservation
and adopts all possible means for environment protection.

Materiality Approach

Determining mateniality levels is subjective and the methodology varies from one organization to the
other. Authorization for transactions and delegation of powers have been clearly difined and documented
through formalized processes in the Cempany. The Cempany has an approved materiality policy ehich is
reviewed annually to confim its relevance.

12
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| DIRECTORS’ REPORT

v of key and f data of six years at a glance

Below is a summary of key operating and financial results for six years and includes the financial results
for the year under reviaw:

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

ASSETS EMPLOYED

Froperty, plant and squipmeant 32,134 25,728 23,704 26,850 20,095 23,272
Tlntangible assets - - - - - -
TLong-term investments 17,769 42,052 35,183 75,600 42,677 1,064
“Tong-term deposits 2.052 1,500 1,500 2,006 1.500 1,608
“Netcument assets 4177 7.108 74,847 17,630 26,631 11,689
“Total assets employed 56,132 76,388 135.234 122.086 90,904 37.623

FINANCED BY

Tssued, subscrbed and paid

96,750 96,750 86,750 64,500 64,500 32,260

up capital
“Reserve and un-appropriated

28.449 23,362 4,359 17,864 14,548 4,915

profit
" Gain / (Loss) on revaluation of

(3,689) 14,360 25,701 38,043 11,856 458
Investments
Shareholder's equity 121,509 134,473 126,810 120,407 90,904 37,623
Long term and deferred

2,048 - - 1,679 = .

liabilities
Total capital employed 123,557 134,473 126,810 122,086 90,904 37,623
Turnover 451,098 383,230 169,486 182,672 184,118 145,538
Profit/{loss) before tax 14,748 17,337 3,798 11,626 11,639 4,686
Profit/loss) after tax 10,237 13,404 2,152 8,766 8,798 3,720
Earnings per share 1.06 1.38 0.25 1.52 208 1.15
Net income % 2.3% 3.4% 1.3% 5.3% 5.3% 2.6%
Return on capital employed 8.3% 10% 1.7% 8.0% 10.8% 9.9%
Dividend
Cash (%) 5% 5% 0% 10% 10% 0%
Stock (%) 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%

Compliance with the best practices of Corporate Governance as per clause XVI of Code of
Corporate Governance
The Board is pleased lo state thal the management of the Company is complianl with the besl practices.
of Carporate Governance, The Board acknowledges its responsibilities in respect of the corporate and
financial reperting framework and thus states that.
= The financial statements, prepared by the management of the Company present fairly its state of
affairs, the result of its operations, cash flows and changes in equity.
= The Company has maintained proper bocks of account.
- Appropriate accounting policies have bsen consistently applied in preparation of financial
statements and accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment.

13
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- Intarmnational Financial Reporting . a8 i istan, have been followsad in
preparation of financial staternents,

= There has been no matarial deparure from the beslt praclices of corporate governance as
detailed in the Book Pakistan Stock Exchange.

- The system of intemal control is sound In design and has been effectively implemented and
monitored. The process of monitoring internal contrals will continue as an ongoing process with
the objective lo further strengthen the controls and bring improvements in the system.

- There is no doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concem.

- Information about taxes and levies is given in notes 1o the accounts.

Audit committee

The Commiltee comprises of three members all of them are non- sxeculiveDirectors including the
Chalrparson of the Gommillee

The terms of reference of the Committee have been determined by the Board of Directors in accordance
with guldelines provided in the Pakistan Stock Exchange Rule Book and advised to the Gommittes for
compliance. The Committes held four meetings during the year.

Members Name Meetings attended
Ms. Saleha Majid 2
Nir. juhammad Shafi 3
Mr. Muhammad Sajld Hussain 3

The Board Audit Committes assists the Board in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities, pHmarily in
reviewing and reporting financial and non-financial information to share-holders, systems of internal
contrel and risk management and the audit process. It has the autonomy to call for information from
management and 1o consult directly with the external auditors or advisors as cansidered appropriate. The
Chisf Financial Officer regularly attends the Board Audit Committes mestings by invitation to present the
accounts. Aftar each meeting, the chairman of the Committea reports to the Board. The Committee met 4
times during 2018-19.
Meetings of board of directors.
During the year, four meetings of the Board of Diracters were held. Attendance by each Director was as
undar:
Name of director Meetings attendance

Mr. Naeem Shafi

Mr. Waseamn Shsfi

Mr. Javed Kh;

Mr. Mudassir Habib Khan

Mr. Muhammad Sajid Hussain

Mr. Muhammad Shafi

Ms. Saleha Majid

WhEWhEA

Performance Evaluation of Board of Directors and Committees of the Board
The evaluation of Board's rols of aversight and its effectivensss is continual process, which is appraised
by the Board itself. The core areas of focus are:
Alignment of corporate goals and cbjectives with the vision and mission of the Company:

Strategy formulation for sustainabis opsration;

Board’s independence; and

Evaluation of Board's Committess performance in relation to discharging their responsibilities set

oLt in respective terms of reference.
Review of CEO's Performance
The performance of the GEO is formally appraised through the evaluation systerm which is based on
quantitative and qualitative values. Each year the Board establishes a list of goals and slrulsgies aligned
to achieve the mission of the Company. Each milestone is thus measured in order to asses:
Parormmancs, It Incilides the Harammantcs of tha businass, the aceomellshmant of objactheas With
raferance to profits, i building, st ion planning and COrporate sUCCEss.
Rale of Chairman and CEO
Chairman acts as the custodian of the Company on behalf of the Board and stakeholders. He haads the
Board of Direclors and is responsible for ensuring the Board's effectiveness. The chairman ensures the
development of business and protection of goodwill of the Company. He alse ensures.
the balance of membership of the Board In terms of versatile exposure to Varous business operations.
and_achievement of the Company’s vision, mission and Its long term goals. He acts as a link batween
the Board and management of the Company and communicates with the Board on behalf of the
managemen
The CEO is responsible for day to day management of the Company's affairs and exscution of long tarm
strategy, plans and budgets to increase shareholders’ value. CEO also represents the Company to
shareholders, government authorities and the public. He is the |eader and decision maker who motivales
employees, drives change within the Gompany and takes decisions to achieve targets.

14
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Directors’ Remuneration

The remuneration of the Board members is approved by the Board itself. However, in accordance with
the Code of Corporate Governanca, it is ensured that no Director takes part in deciding his own
remuneration. The Company does nol pay remuneration lo non-sxecutive directors except fee for
attending the meeting. In order to retain the best talent, the Company’s remuneration polides are
structured in line with prevalling industry trends and business practices. For information on remuneration
af Directors and CEQ in 2018-19, please refer notes to the Financial Statements.

and rem.

The Board in accordance with the Code of Corporate Governance has also constituied a Human
Resource and Remuneration Committee, comprising of the following three Directors:

Meetings attendance

Ms. Saleha Majid 1
Mr. Muhammad Shafi 1
Mr. Mubammad Sajid Hussain 1

QOur aim is to maintain a high performing organization that attracts, develops and retains talented
resources. Personal development of our employees (s fadilitated by empowering them with bigger roles
and challenging assignments, as well as through coaching, mentoring and a challenging appraisal
systam.

The Committee meets to review and recommend all elements of the compensation, organization and
employee development padlicies relating 1o the senior executives’ remuneration and to approve all matters
relating to the remunerations to the executive director and members of the management committea. The
Committee met once during 2018-19.

Statutory auditors

Thepresent Auditors,RSM Avals Hyder Uaquat Nauman Chartered Accountants will retire and offer
themselves for reappointment the financial year ending June 30, 2020.

Pattern of shareholding

A slalement showing the paltern of shareholding in the Gompany and additional information as on June
30, 2018 is annexed to this report.

There were 1,277 shareholders on the record of the Company as at 30th June 2019,

Directors' training Program

Board of directors training helps the board fulfill its role and make a real difference to the company’s
performance. Therefore keeping the same in mind and requirements of the code one Director namely
Mr-Muhammad Shafi has attended the directors’ training program conducted by Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Pakistan during the year.

Future outlook

The rupee devaluation by 35% during the outgaing year and there may be further carrection against the
USD. The inflation is also on the rise and it could put pressure on buying power of consurmner and
ulimately effect on local segment of business.

Furthermore imposilion of GET 17% on Textile export seclor will adversely affect he cash flows / would
Increase borrowing and would make extremely difficult for foreign exchange eaming Industry that s
surviving on negligible margin to compete world wide

Acknowledgments

The Management would like to place on record its appreciation for the support of Board of Directors,
regulatory authoritiss, sharsholders, customers. financial institutions, suppliars and dadication and hard
work of the stafl and workers.

For and on behalf of the Board ?ﬁv—‘ﬂ-ﬁ/‘-ﬂé"‘w

JAVED KHAN NAEEM SHAFI
Karachi: September 30, 2019 Director & Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive
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International Knitwear Limited

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH LISTED COMPANIES
(CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2017

The Company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner:
1. The total number of directors are 7 as per the following:
Male: 6 (Six)
Female: 1 (One)

2. The compaosition of board is as follows:

Category Name

Executive Directors Mr.Naeem Shafi
Mr.Javed Khan

Non-Executive Directors Mr.Waseem Shafi

Mr.Muhammad Shafi
Mr.Muhammad Sajid Hussain
Mr.Mudassir Habib Khan
Independent Director Ms.Saleha Majid

3. The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than five listed
companies, including this Company.

4. The Company has prepared a “Code of Conduct” and has ensured that appropriate steps have been
taken to disseminate it throughout the Company along with its supporting policies and procedures.

5. The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant
palicies of the Company. A complete record of particulars of significant policies along with the dates
on which they were approved or amended has been maintained.

6. All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matter shave been
taken by the Board/shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and these
Regulations.

7 The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a director
elected by the Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements of Act and the
Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meeting of the Board.

8 The Board of Directors have a formal pelicy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors
in accordance with the Act and these Regulations.
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International Knitweat Litnited

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH LISTED COMPANIES
(CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE)} REGULATIONS, 2017

13.

14,

15,

Two directors of the company have acquired certification under Director’s training program.
However, those who meet the exemption criteria, far them the company has not applied the
exemption from the commission.

CEO and CFO duly endorsed the financial statements before approval of the Board.

The board has appraved appointment of CFO, Company Secretary and Head of Internal Audit,
including their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment and complied with relevant
requirements of the regulations. However, the CFO has also been assignad the respensibilities of the
company secretary.

The Board has formed committees comprising of members given below:

Audit Committee

Saleha Majid (Chairperson)
Muhammad Sajid Hussain
Mudassir Habib Khan

HR and Remuneration Committee
Saleha Majid {Chairperson)
Muhammad Shafi

Muhammad Sajid Hussain

The terms of reference of the Audit committee have been formed, documented and advised to the
committee for compliance. However, the term of reference of the HR & Remuneration committee
is not formed.

The frequency of meetings of the committee were as per following:
a)  Audit Committee: Four quarterly meetings during the financial year ended June 30, 2018
b} HR and Remuneration Committee: Ohe meeting during the financial year ended lune 30, 2019
The Board has setup an internal audit function who are considered suitably experience for the purpose

and are conversant with the policies and procedures of the company. However, the qualification of
head of internal audit does nat meet the requirement of the cade.
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Intetnational Knitwear Limited

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH LISTED COMPANIES
(CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE)} REGULATIONS, 2017

16.

17,

18.

The statutory auditors of the Company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory
rating under the guality control review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Pakistan {ICAP), and registered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they or any of the
partners of the firm, their spouses and minor children do not hold shares of the Company and that
the firm and all its partners are in compliance with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC)
guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the ICAP.

The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide
other services except in accordance with the Act, these regulations or any other regulatory
requirement and the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this
regard.

We confirm that all other requirements of the Regulations have been complied with except for the
following towards which reasonable progress is being made by the Company to seek compliances
by the year end of next accounting year June 30, 2020:

a) Level of materiality has not been defined by the board.

b) Complete record of significant policies is not maintained by the board.

M

WASEEM SHAFI NAEEM SHAF|

Karachi: September 30, 2019 Chairman Chief Executive
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International Knitweat Limited

REVIEW REPORT ON THE STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE CONTAINED IN LISTED
COMPANIES (CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2017

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2017 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of
Directors of International Knitwear Limited (the Company) for the year ended June 30, 2019 in
accordance with the requirements of regulation 40 of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the
Company. Our responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the
status of the Company's compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does
not and to highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A review is
limited primarily to inquiries of the Company's personnel and review of various documents
prepared by the Company to comply with the Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of
the accounting and intemal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective
audit approach. We are not required to consider whether the Board of Directors' statement on
internal control covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such
internal controls, the Company's corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon
recommendation of the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review
and approval, its related party transactions and also ensure compliance with the requirements
of section 208 of the Companies Act, 2017. We are only required and have ensured
compliance of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party transactions by
the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee. We have not carried out
procedures to assess and determine the Company's process far identification of related parties
and that whether the related party transactions were undertaken at arm’s length price or not.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the
Statement of Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all
material respects, with the requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the
Company for the year ended June 30, 2019.

Further, we highlight below instances of non-compliance with the requirement(s) of the

Regulations as reflected in the paragraph reference where these are stated in the Statement of
Compliance:
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International Knitweat Limited

REVIEW REPORT ON THE STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE CONTAINED IN LISTED
COMPANIES (CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2017

S# Paragraph | Description
reference
The company has not applied the exemption from the
9 director’s training program from the commission as required
under the regulation.
I 1 CFO also holds the office of the company secretary.
IIl. 13 The term of reference of HR & R committee is not formed.
Head of internal audit does not meet the qualification criteria
IV. 15 - :
prescribed by the regulations.
V. 18 (a) The level of materiality has not been defined by the board
The board has not maintained the complete record of
vl 18(b) | significant policies as required under the regulation.
Sd/-
Engag t Partner: Adi Zaman
Chartered Accountants
Karachi.

Date: September 30, 2019
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<% [nternational Knitwear Limited

AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of International Knitwear Limited (the
Company), which comprise the statement of financial position as at June 30, 2019, and the
statement of profit or loss, the statement of other comprehensive income, the statement of
changes in equity, the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting palicies and other
explanatory information, and we state that we have obtained all the information and
explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the
purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the other
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows
together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the accounting and reporting
standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the Companies Act,
2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of
the state of the Company's affairs as at June 30, 2019 and of the profit and other
comprehensive loss, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as
applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards
Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our apinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters
were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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<% Tnernational Knitwear Limited

AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

Following are the key audit matters:

S. No. Key Audit Matters How the matter was addressed in
our audit
1. Revenue Qur audit procedures included the
(Refer note 20 1o the financial | following:
stalements) -Obtained an understanding of the

process relating to recognition of
The Company generates revenue from | revenue and testing the design,
sale to export as well as local customers. | implementation and operating
We considered revenue recognition as | effectiveness of key internal controls.
key audit matter as it is one of the key
performance indicators and because of | -Performed test of details on a
the potential risk that revenue may not | sample basis  with underlying
be recorded in the appropriate period. documentations by inspecting and
comparing customer orders, delivery
challans, bill of lading (in case of
export sales), invoices and other
related documents.

-Compared sample of revenue
transactions recorded around the
year end with the sales orders, sales
invoices, delivery documents and
other relevant underlying
documentation to  ensure  that
revenue pertains to the appropriate
accounting period.

-Ensured the adegquacy of
disclosures in  accordance  with
applicable financial reparting
standards and the Companies Act,
2017.

2. | Stock in trade Our audit procedures included the
(Refer note 9to the financial statements) | following:

Due to the significance of inventory | -Obtained an understanding of
balances and related estimations | internal controls over purchases and
involved, this is considered as a key | valuation of stock in trade and tested,
audit matter. on a sample basis, their design,
implementation and operating
effectiveness.

-Attended physical inventory counts
performed by the Company.
-Obtained and reviewed the inventory
count report of the management and
assessedits accuracy on a sample
basis
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<5 Tnernational Knitwear Limited

AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

-Ensuring that proper provision has
been made for slow moving, obsolete
and damaged inventory or items
selling below cost.

-Perfarmed NRV test to ensure that
the inventory is valued at lower of
costand NRV.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon
Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report, but does not include the financial statements and
our auditor's reports thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In cannection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nathing to report in this
regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in
Pakistan and the requirements of the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such
intemnal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic altemative
but te do so.

The Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process.
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<5 Tnernational Knitwear Limited

AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor's report that includes our opinion.Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as
applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

-ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from emor, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

-Obtain an understanding of interal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

-Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.
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<5 Tnernational Knitwear Limited

AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

-Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concem basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude fhat a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our apinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concem.

-Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in intemal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements ragarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards,

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current year and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse conseguences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.
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AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

(a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies
Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017);

(b) the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of other
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows
together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act,
2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the books of account and returns;

(c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were
for the purpose of the Company's business; and

(d) zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 {XVIIl of 1980), was
deducted by the company and deposited in the Central Zakat Fund established under
section 7 of that Ordinance

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Adnan
Zaman.

Sd/-

Chartered Accountants

Karachi.
Date: September 30, 2019
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<5 Inrernational Knitwear Limited

| BALANCE SHEET AS AT JUNE 30,2019

2018 2018
ASSETS Note Rupees Rupees
Non-Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment 6 32,134,519 25,728,306
Long term deposits 7 2,052,600 1,500,000
Long term loan 11 703,000 -
Long term investments 8 17,769,756 42,052,371
Gl b 52,659,875 69,280,677
Stock in trade -4 120,400,006 50,619,309
Short term investments 2 4,177,071 7,108,606
Trade debts - considered good 10 54,580,348 69,310,130
Loans and advances 11 4,050,811 2,466,367
Other receivables 12 18,882,741 11,273,510
Taxation - net 18 21,607,985 18,230,723
Cash and bank balances i3 2,682,797 1,661,962
226,381,759 160,670,607
TOTAL ASSETS 279,041,635 229,951,284
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Issued, subscribed & paid-up capital 14 96,750,000 96,750,000
Revenue Reserves
Unappropriated profit 28,445,084 23.362,841
125,199,084 120,112,841
Capital Reserves
Unrealized (loss) / gain on revaluation of investments - FVTOCI (3,689,453} 14,360,264
121,509,631 134,473,104
Non-Current Liabilities
Long term liability against assets subject to finance lease 15 2,048,904
Current Liabilities L
Short term finance under mark-up arrangement 16 69,159,154 19,195 461
Current maturity of liability against assets subject to finance lease 15 401,891 -
Creditors, accrued and other payables 17 84,398,930 74,966,895
Unclaimed dividend 1,523,125 1,315823
155,483,100 85478179
G and G 19 = =
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 279,041,635 229,951,284

The annexed notes 1 to 38 form an integral part of these financial statements.

e

WASEEM SHAFI NAEEM SHAFI JAVED KHAN
Chairman Chief Executive Officer Director / CFQ
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<5 [nternational Knitwear Limited

| PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

2019 2018
Note Rupees Rupees

Net sales 20 451,098,967 353,230,773
Cost of goods sold 21 (418,993,170} (334,420,003}
Gross profit 32,105,797 58,810,770
Administrative and selling expenses 22 (21,776,647) (17,001,302}
Operating profit 10,329,150 41,809,468
Qther income / {loss) 23 11,129,178 (16,506,278}
Unrealized {loss) on revaluation of investments through P&L (424,559) {384,716)

10,704,619 (16,890,934)

21,033,769 24,918,474
Finance cost 24 (5,192,037} (6,296,250)
Other charges 25 (1,093,080} (1,284,934}

(6,285,117} (7.581,184)
Profit before taxation 14,748,652 17,332,290
Taxation 18 (4,510,990} (3,932,308}
Profit after taxation 10,237,662 13,404,982
Earnings per share - basic and diluted 27 1.06 139

The annexed notes 1 to 38 form an integral part of these financial statements.

1 o

WASEEM SHAFI NAEEM SHAFI JAVED KHAN
Chairman Chief Executive Officer Director | CFO
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<5 Inrernational Knitwear Limited

| STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

2019 2018
Rupees. Rupees.
Profit after taxation for the year 10,237,662 13,404,982
Other comprehensive loss
Items that will not be sub: ly reclassified to of profit or
loss
Unrealised loss on rameasurement of investments classified as FYTOC! (313,919)
Reclassification of OC! compenent on disposal of FYTOCI investment
] ¥ H {18,049,717)
directly into equity
{18,363,635)
Items that are or will be sub ly reclassified to of profit
or loss
Unrealised loss an remeasurement of investments classified as Available
(9,769,124)
for Sale
Reclassification of OC| compenent on disposal of Available for Sale
¢ ; 4,026,455
investment into Profit or Loss
- (5,742,669)
Total comprehensive (loss) / incame far the year (8,125,373) 7,662,313

The annexed notes 1 to 38 form on integrol part of these financial statements,

'Qb«ﬁO P s

WASEEM SHAFI NAEEM SHAFI JAVED KHAN
Chairman Chief Executive Officer Director /| CFO
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<5 [nternational Knitwear Limited

| STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Balance as at June 30, 2017

Total comprehensive income;
et profit for the year ended lune 30, 2018

Unrealized loss on revaluation of investments -
available for sale

Net profit for the year ended June 30, 2018

Adjustment on initial application of IFRS 9 - [Mata 5.1)

Balance as at July 01, 2018

Total comprehensive income:
MNet profit for the year ended June 30, 2019

Reclassification an disposal of FVTOC! directly inta edquity
Falir value adjustment on investment classified as FYTOO

Transaction with owners:
5% cash dividend paid for the year ended June 30, 2018

Balance as at June 30, 2019

eserves

--Capital Reserve-- --Revenue Reserve-

Issued, Subscribed  Unrealized gain /

The annexed nates 1 ta 38 form an integrol part of these financial statements.

WASEEM SHAFI
Chairman

30

and Paid up share  {loss) an revaluacion ""'“‘:’xm"" Total
Capital of investments. s
Rupees
96,750,000 25,701,370 2,359,021 126,810,791
13404982 13,404,982
(5,742,669) (5,742,663)
36,750,000 19,958,702 17,764,403 134,473,105
(5,508,438) 5,598,438
96,750,000 14360264 3,362,881 134,473,105
10,237,662 10,237,662
(313,919) (313,919)
(18,049,717) 5 (18,048,717)
4,337,500 {4.837,500)
96,750,000 3,689,453, 28,443,084 121,509,631
NAEEM SHAFI IAVED KHAN
Chief Exgoutive Officer Director | CFO



<5 Inrernational Knitwear Limited

| STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

2019 2018
Note Rupees Rupees.
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit hefore taxation 14,748,652 17,337,290
Adjustment for non cash items:
Depreciation 3,949,790 20423277
Lass / {Gain) on sale of property, plant and equipment 6,209 (132,600)
Gther income 1,744,443 (5,278,454)
Finance cost 5,192,037 6,786,250
10,892,479 3,927,573
Profit before changes in working capital 25,641,131 21,264,863
Increase in current assets
Stack in trade (69,780,637) (30,056,051}
Trade debts 14,729,782 (11,008,031}
Loans and advances (2,287,444) (281,375)
GOther recelvables (7,609,231)| 15,575,135
164,547,550 (26,920,552}
Increase / (decrease) in current liabilities
Payable against purchase of investment - | (33,094,570
Creditors, accrued and other payables 9,432,034 35277,411
9,432,034 2,182,841
Financial charges paid (5,192,037) (6,296,250)
Taxes pald (7.688,252) (8,976 495)
Nat cash genarated used in operating activities (42,954,714) 138,694,634)
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Capital expenditure (7.736.021) 15,851,087
Additons in investment (81,740,898) {467,905,437)
Dispasal of Investment BR.846,777 528,232,000
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 137,000 917,250
Long term deposits (552,600) -
Finance lease rentals paid (312,205) -
Net cash (used in) / generated from investing activities 1,357,947 55,392,816
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES.
Cash proceeds from shart Lerm finance under markup arrangement 189,586,681 103,264,703
Repayment of short term finance under markup arrangement {139,622,987) {118,637,414)
Dividend paid (4,630,198) B
Net cash generated from / (used in) financing activities 45,333,496 {15,372,711)
Net (decrease)/ increase In cash and cash equivalents 1,020,835 1,325,471
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 1,661,962 336,491
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 28 2,682 797 1,661,962

The annexed notes 1 o 38 form an integral part of these financiad statements.

'Qu«% P s

WASEEM SHAFI NAEEM SHAFI JAVED KHAN
Chairman Chief Executive Officer Director /| CFO
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| NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

1. STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS
International Knitwear Limited (harelnafter referred as the "Company" ar "IKL") is incorporated In Pakistan and Is listed on Pakistan Stock
Exchange Limited. The geographical location and address of the head office and manufacturing plant of the Company is Plot #f F-2A/L, SITE,
Karachi, Pakistan
We are leaders in creating, developing and manufacturing knitted and woven apparel products right frem basic to highly fashioned
garments. We are engaged In the export af quality garments. We have established a name of credentials owing 1o the projected
commitments, working speed and quality practices. Our operating philosophy is 1o provide buyers with products that meet their
specification, and are reliably deliver=d at a reasonable price in domestic and international markats,

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT TRANSACTIONS AND EVENTS AFFECTING THE COMPANY'S FINANCIAL POSITION AND PERFORMANCE

The financial position anc performance of the Campany was affected by the following events and transactians during the vear:

{a) During the year Company has adepted IFRS 8 and IFRS 1 which is disclased in note § 5.1
{6 The company has obtained short term financing for manging working capital which is disclosad in note # 16
3. BASIS OF PREPARATION
31 Statement of compliance

Thesa financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in
Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards a5 applicable in Pakistan comprise of :
- Intarnational Financial Reparting Standards (IFRS) issusd by the International Accounting Standards Board {IASB] as notified
Under the Companies Act, 2017; and
- Provisions of and directives issued undar the Campanies Act, 2017,
Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS Standards, the provisions of and
directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

32 Basls of measurement
Thess financial statements have been prepared under the histarical cost convention except as stated otherwise in these finzncial
statements.

13 Functional and presentation currency
These financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupees, which is Company’s functional currency. All the financlal information
presented In Pakistan| Rupee has been rounded off to nearest Rupee.

34 Critical accounting estimates and judgments
The preparation of financial in ity with ianal Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) requires the use of
certaln accounting astimates. it alsa redquires the management ta exerclss its judgment in the process of applying the Campany's

accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or or areas where and estimates are

significant 1o the financial statements, are as follows:

- Classification of financial instruments; {note 5.2)

- Pravision for impairmant; (nate 5.4)

Valuation of work in process; (note 5.7) and

- Provision for obsolete inventory; {note 5.8)

- Taatian; fnete 5.11)

- Determination and measurement of useful life and residual valua of praperty, plant and equipment, (nate 5.5 and 6]
Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experiences and other factars, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reascnable under the circumstances.

Standards, interpretations and amendments applicable to financial statements

41 New ing standards / and IFRS interpretations that are effective for the year ended June 30, 2019
The following standards, amendments and interpretations are effective for the year ended June 30, 2018, These standards,
interpretations and the amendments are either not relevant to the Company's oparations or are not expected to have
significant impact on the Company's financial statements ather than certain additional disclosures.
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4.2

Amendments to IFRS 2 ‘Share-based Payment' - Clarification on the classification and measurement of
share-based payment transactions.

IFRS 4 'Insurance Contracts' - Amendments regarding the interaction

of IFRS 4 and IFRS 9.

IFRS 8 'Financlal Instruments’ - This standard will supersede 1AS 33 Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement ugon Its effective date.

IFRS 15 "Revenue’ - This standard will supersede 1AS 18, 1AS 11 and related interpretations

IFRIC 13, 15 and 18 and SIC 31 upon Its effective date

o 145 40 'Inve Property’ - € 1 on transfers of property to or from
Investment property
IFRIC 22 'Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration’ - Provides guidance on transactions
where consideration against nah-monetary prapaid asset / deferred income is denominated in foreign
currency
Certain annual improvements have also been made to a number of IFRSs
New and that are not yer effective

Effective from
accounting period
beginning on or
after:

January 1, 2018

January 1, 2018

July1,2018

July 1, 2018

January 1, 2018

January 1, 2018

The following standards, amendments and interpretations are only effective for accounting parlods, beginning an or after
the date mentioned against each of them. These standards, interpretations and the amendments are either not relevant
1o the Company's operations o are not expected Lo have significant impact on the Campany’s financial statements other

than certain additional disclesures.

Amendments to IFRS 3 'Business Combinations' - Amendments January 01, 2020 regarding the definition
of husiness

Amendmants to IFRS 9 ‘Flnancial Instruments’ - Amendments regarding prepsyment features with
negative compensatian and madifications af financlal liabilities.

d to IFRS 10 'Co Financial " and 1AS 28 11 in Associates and
Joint Ventures' - Sale or contribution of assets betwean an investar and [ts assoclate or jaint venture.

IFRS 16 'Leases’ - This standard will supersede 1AS 17 "Leases’ upon its effective date

Amendments to 1AS 28 'lnvestments in Assoclates and laint Ventures' - Amendments regarding lang
term interests In an assoclate ar jaint ventura that farm part of the net investment n the assaciate ar
joint venture but to which the equity method is not applied.

Amendmants ta IAS 19 Employee Banefits' - Amendments regarding plan amendments, curtallments ar
settlements.

IFRIC 23 “Uncertalnty over Income Tax T ! - Clarifies the in relation to
determination of taxable profit {tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax eredits and tax rates,
when thera Is uncertainty aver income tax traatmants under 1AS 12 Income Taxes'

Effective from
accounting period
beginning on or
after:

January 1, 2020
January 1, 2019

Effective from
accounting period
beginning on or after
@ date to be
determined. Earlier
application is.
permitted,

January 1, 2018

January 1, 2018

January 1, 2019

January 1, 2019
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o to 1S 1 P tion of Financial " and 1AS & "Accaunting Policies, Changes in lanuary 1, 2020
Accounting Estimates and Errors' - Amendments ragarding the definition of material.
Amendments to References to the Conceptual Frameawerk in IERS Standards lanuary 1, 2020

Certain annual improvements have also been made to a number of IFRSs.

Other than the aforesaid standards, interpretations and amendments, the Intarnational Accounting Standards Board {IASB) has
also issued the following standards which have net been adopted locally by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan
{SECP):

- IFRS 1 'First Time Adaption of International Financial Reporting Standards'

- IFRS 14 'Regulatory Deferral Accounts’

- IFRS 17 'Insurance Contracts'

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Except as described below In note 4.1, the significant accounting policies are consistently applied In the preparation of these financial
statements are the same as those applied in earlier periods presented.

51

512

Changes in significant accounting policies

The Company has adopled IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’ and IFRS § ‘Financial Instruments’ from 01 July 2018
which are effective from annual periods beginning an or after 01 July 2018 and for reporting period f year ending on ar after 30
June 2019 respectively.

The details of new significant accounting policies adopted and the nature and effect of the changes to previous accounting policies
are set out below.

IFRS 15 ‘Revenua from Contracts with Customers

IFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers’ Is effective for accounting pariod beginning on or after July 1, 2018, This
standard has replaced 1AS 18, 1AS 11 & Revenue and related interpretations and it applies to all revenue arising from contracts
with customers. The IFRS 15 establish 3 five-steps mode to account for revenue arising from contracts with customers. Undar IFRS
15, revenue is recognized at an amount that reflects the consideration ta which an entity expects to be antitled in exchange far
transferring goods or services 1o a customer, The standard requires the entities to exercise Judgment, taking in to consideration 2l
of the relevant facts and circumstances when applying each step of the model to contracts with the customers. Hence, the
Company has concluded that the impact of adoption of revenue recognition model s laid down in IFRS 15 is not material. There is
no material impact of transition to IFRS 15 on the finandal pasition of the Company and there is no effect on the accounting
policies of the Company in respect of revenue fram cantracts with Customers.

IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments'

IFRS @ sets out requirements for recognising and measuring financial assets, financial liabilities and some contracts to buy or sell
non-financial items, This standard has replaced the provisions of IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. The
new standard brings fundamental changes to the accounting for financial assets and to certain aspacts of the accounting far
financial liabilities.

The details of new significant accounting palicies and the nature and effect of the changes to previous accounting policies are set
out below:

Classi and of ets

IFRS 9 largely retains the existing requirements in 145 39 for the classification and measurement of financial liabilities. However, it

- Fair value through other comprehensive income (FYOCI)

- Fair value through profit or loss (FVTRL]; and

- measurement at amartised cost

IFRS @ dassification is generally based on the business model in which a financial asset is managed and its contractual cash flows.
The adoption of IFRS 9 has not had a significant effect on the Company's aceounting palicies related to financial liabilities. The
impact of IFRS 2 an the classifization and measurement of Hinancial assets is set out below.
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b)

The following assessments have been made on the basis of the facts and circumstances that existed at the date of initial
application:

The determination of businass model within which a financial asset is held; and
- The designation and revocation of previous designation of certain financlal assets as measured at FVTPL.
Financial assets
The Company classifies its financial assets at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive income or fair value through
profit or loss on the basis of the Company’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the financial asset.,
Financial assets at amortised cost
Financlal assets at amortised cost are held within a business model whose objective is te hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financlal asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
Financial assets at fair value through ather comprehensive income
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income are held within a business model whose objective is achieved
by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely paymants of principal and interest on the principal amaunt outstanding,
On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may irrevocably elect to present
subsequent changes in the investment's fair value in OCL This election is made an an investment-by-investment basis.
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FYOCI as described above are measured at FYTPL. On initial
recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the reguirements to be measured at
amaortised cost or at FYOC! as at FYTPL If dolng so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise
arlse.
A financial asset is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at FUTPL, transaction costs that are directly attributable to
its acquisition.
The accounting policies that apply to financial instruments are stated in note 4.2 to the financial statements.
On intial application of IFRS 9, in accordance with the transitional provisions in IFRS 3, comparatives figures have not been restated
and the reclassification Is recagnised in the opening statement of financlal position.

The effect of change in accounting policy is as follows:
As atJune 30, Reclassification Asat1luly,

2018 2018
{Rupees)

Impact on statement of financial position

Investments - Fair value through other 23,011,500 19,040,871 42,052,371
Investments - at fair value through profit or loss 26,149,475 {19,040,871) 7,108,605
Impact on statement of changes in equity

Unrealized appreciation sn re-measurement of 19,958,702 {5,598,438) 14,360,264
Unappropriated profit 17,764,403 5,598,438 23,362,841

The following table and the accompanying notes below explain the original measurement categories under 1AS 39 and the new
measurement categories under IFRS 9 for each class of the Company’s financial assets as at July 1, 2018:
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Original carrying  New carrying amount

Original i New

ameunt under under
under |AS 39 under IFRS 9 1AS 38 IFRS 8
[Rupees)

Long term deposits Loans and receivables Amartised cost 1,500,000 13500,000,
Long tetm investments Available for sale FyTOL! 23,011,500 42,052,371
Short term investments Held far trading FVTPL 26,228,324 7,108,605
Trade debts - considered Loans and receivables Amortised cost 69,310,130 69,310,130
good
Loans and advances Loans and receivables Amaortised cost 37;'500 87;‘500
Other receivables Loans and receivables Amartised cost . :21'223 . 221‘;22
Cash and bank balances Loans and receivables Amortised cost i T
Impairment

In relation to the impairment of financial assets, IFRS & requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed to an incurred credit
loss model under 145 39, The expected credit loss model requires an entity to account for expected credit losses and changes in
those sxpacted cradit losses at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since Initial recognition. In other words, it Is ho
longer necessary for a credit event to have accurred before cradit losses are recognized

The Company applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measure expacted credit losses which uses a lifetima expected loss
allowance for trade receivables and all loans and advances.

The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk. For trade
receivables and loans and advances, the company apalies the simplified approach, which reduires expected lifetime losses to he
recognised from initial recognition of the receivables.

Financial Instruments

Initial measurement of financial asset

The Company classifies its financial assets into following three categories:

- fair value through ather comprehensive incame (FVOCH);

- fairvalue through profit o lass (FYVTPL); and

- measured at amortised cost

A financial asset is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at FYTPL, transaction costs that are directly attributable to

its acquisition,

Subsequent measurement

The following accounting policies apply to the subsequent measurement of financial assets:

Financial assets at FVTPL These assets are subsequently measured at fair valua, Net gains and losses, Including any Interest /
markup or dividend income, are recognised in Income statemant

Financial assets at amortised These assels are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest methed. The

st
€0 amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses {see (i) below]. Interest / markup income, foreign

exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in income statement.

Debt investments at FVOCl  These assels are subsaquently measured at fair value. Interest / markup income calculated using
the effective interest method, foreign exchange gains and losses and Impairment are recognised in
income statement. Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCl. On derecognition, gains and
losses accumulated in OCI are reclassified to income statement.
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Equity investments at FVOCI These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are racognised as income in
income statement unless the dividend clearly reprasents a recovery of part of the cost of the
investment. Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCI and are never reclassified to income
statement.

Derecognition of Financial Assets

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights ta receive cash flows from the assets have expired or have been transferred and
the Company has transterred

Non-derivative financial assets

All non-derivative financial assets are initially recognised on trade date i.e. date on which the Company becomes party to the
respective contractual pravisions, Man-derivative financial assets camprise loans and recelvables that are financial assets with fixed
ar determinable payments that are not quoted in active markets and Includes long term loans, accruals, prepayments, advances
and other receivables and cash and cash equivalent. The Company derecognises the financial assets when the contractual rights ta
the cash flows from the asset expires or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which
substantially all of the risk and rewards of ownership of the financial assets are transferred or it neither transfers nor retain
substantially all of the risks and rewards of cwnership and does not retain control over the transferred asset.

53 Regular way contracts

All purchases and sales of securities that reguire delivery within the time frame established by regulation or market convention
such as 'T+2' purchases and sales are recognised 2t the trade date. Trade date is the date on which the Company commils ta
purchase or sell the assets.

5.4 Impairment.

Financial assets

The Company racognises loss allowances for Expected Cra
cost.

The Company measures loss allowances at an amaunt equal to lifetime ECLs, except for other securities and bank balances which
are measured at 12 months expected credit losses. Since these assets are short trm in nature, therefore no cradit loss is expacted
on these balances.

Losses (ECLs) in respect of financial assats measured at amortised

Nan-financial assets
The carrying amounts of the Company's non-financial assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine whether there
is any indication of impairment. If suc)
less costs to sell, is estimated. In assessing value in use, the estmated future cash flows are discaunted to their present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For
the purpase of impalrment testing, assets that cannot be tested (ndividually are grouped together Into the smallest group of assets
that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or groups of
assets, An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset sxcesds its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses are recognised In the statement of profit ar lass.

55 Financial lities
Financial liabilities are initially recagnised on trade date i.e. date on which the company becomes party to the respective
contractual provisions. Financial liabilities include mark-up bearing borrowings and trade and other payables. The Company
derecognises the financial liabilities when contractual obligations are discharged er cancelled or expire. Financial liability other
than al fair value through profit or loss are initially measured at fair value less any directly atirlbutable transaction cost.
Subsequent to Initial recognition, these liabilities are measured at amortised cost using ffective interest rate methad.

dication exists, the asset's recoverable amount, being higher of value in use and fair value

5.6 Off-setting of financial assets and financial liabilities
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount s reported in the financial statements only when the
Company has a legally enforceable right to offset and the Company Intends to sither settle on a net basls, or to realise the assets
and to settle the liabilities simuitan=ously. Income and expense it=ms of such assets and liabiliti=s are also offset and the net
amount is reported in the financial statements only when permitted by the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in
Pakistan_
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5.7 Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any.
Depreciation is charged, from the month when the asset is available for use and ceased prior to the month of disposal, to profit
and loss account applying the straight-line method.
Maintenance and repairs are charged to profit and loss account as and when incurred. Major renewals and improvements are
capitalized and the assets sa raplacad, If any, are retired. The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed
and adjusted, if appropriate, at each balance sheet date,
Gains and losses arising on disposal of property, plant and equipment are takan to profit and loss account in the year of disposal.
58 Assets subject to finance lease
The Company accounts for fixed assets acquired under finance lease by recarding the asset and the corresponding liability. These
amounts are based on discounting value of minimum lease payments. Financial charges are allocated to the income in the period.
5.9 Capital work in progress
Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost accumulated up to the balance sheet date and represents expenditure incurred an
praperty, plant and equipment in the course of construction. These expenditures are transferred to relevant category of property,
plant and equipment as and when the assets start operation.
510  Stock-in-Trade
fal  Raw, packing and other materials are valued at the lower of cost calculated on a first-in-first-out basis and net
realizable value,
(b)  Workin process is valued at material cost plus estimated conversion cost,
] Finished goods are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value (NRV). NRV signifies the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business lass cost necessarily to be incurred in order to make the sale.
(d)  Stock-in-transit is valued at cost comprising inveice value plus other charges incurred thereon.
511  Staff Retirement Benefits
The Cempany operates an approved defined cantributory provident fund scheme for eligible employees. Equal contributions are
made to the fund by the Company and the employees at the rate of 8,33 % of basic salary.
512 Compensated Absences
The Company has a policy to provide for compensated absences for all employaas in accordance with the rules of the Company.
513 Taxation
Current
Provision for current taxation is based on taxal

income at the current rates of taxation in accordance with the final tax regime,
of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. Inceme not covered under final tax regime is taxed under normal regime.
Deferred
Deferred tax is provided using the balance shest liability method, providing for temporary difference hetween the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. The amount of
deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of realization or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities,
using tax rates enacted at the balance sheet date. However due to application of final tax basis of taxation, deferred taxation
would nat arise.

514  Borrowing Costs
Borrowing costs are recognized as expense in the period in which they are Incurred, except to the extent that they are directly
attributable to the construction of a qualifying asset in which case they ara capitalized as part of the cost of that particular assat.
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5.15

517

518

Provisions

Pravisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, when it is
probable that outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required ta settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
of the abligation can be made.

Foreign Currencies Translation

Transactions in foreign currencias are accounted for in Pak Rupees at the rate of exchange prevailing on the date of transaction.
Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies as at the balance sheet date are expressed in rupees at rates of exchange
prevailing on that date. Non monetary Items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a forelgn currency are translated
using the exchange rate at the date of the transactions. Exchange gains and losses are included in income currently.

Revenue Recognition

- Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when the Company satisfies a performance abligation by transferring promised goods
to customer. Gonds are transferred when the customer obtains their control (i.e. on dispatch of goods to customers]. Revenue is
recognised at transaction price {which excludes estimates of variable consideration].

- Profit on bank balances is recognised on a time propartion basis an the principal amount outstanding and at the applicable rate.

- Gains / ({losses] arising on disposal of investments are recognised on the date when the transaction takes place.

- Unrealised galns [ {losses) arising on revaluation of securities measured at "fair value are included in profit or loss [ other
comprehensiva incomea in the period In which they arise.

- The aforesaid change in accounting pelicy did not result in any significant change,

Balances from contract with custemers

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer, The Company
recognizes a contracl asset for the samed consideration that is conditional if the Company performs by translerring goods or
services to a customer before the customer pays considaration or before payment is due,

Trade receivables

A receivable represents the Company's right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional. Trade receivables are carried at
original invaice amount less expected credit loss based on a review of all outstanding amounts at the year end. Bad debts are
written off when identifed.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received consideration
from the customer. A contract liability is recognized at zarlier of when the payment is made or the payment is due if a customer
pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the customer.

Right of return assets

Right of return asset represents the Company's right to recover the goods expected to be returned by customers. The asset is
measured at the former carrying amount of the inventory, less any expected costs to recover the goods, including any potential
decreases in the value of the returnad goods. The Company updates the measurement of the asset recorded for any revisions to its
expected lavel of returns, as well as any additional decreases In the value of the returned products.

Refund liabilities

A refund liability < the obligation to refund some or all of the consideration received {or receivable} from the customer and is
measured at the amount the Company ultimataly expects it will have to return to the customer. The Company updatss its
estimates of refund liabilities (and the corresponding change in the transaction price| at the end of each reporting period.
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5.18

5.20

5.21

522

40

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash balances, current and deposit account balances with banks, and running finance
facilities availed by the Company, which form an integral part of Company's cash management and are included as part of cash and
cash equivalents for the purpose of statement of cash flow,

Related Party Transactions

Al transactions involving related parties arising in the normal course of business are conducted at arm's length at normal
commereial rates on the same terms and conditions as third party transactions using valuation modes, as admissible, except in
extremely rare circumstances, where subject to the approval of the Board of Directars, it is in the interast of the Company to do
so.

Segments Reporting

Identification of segments
Export division
Local division

A new segment was classified last year{2018] , which was named "local division™.

Basis for allocation for revenue and expenses:

Revenue in respect of each segment is separately identifiable. Expenses against knitting charges, dyeing and other charges,
embroidery charges, stitching charges, clearing and farwarding charges, freight actroi and cartrage expenses are allocated an
actual basis. However, depreciation and all other general expenses are allocated on the fallowing basis.

Segment Allocation
Basis of allocation Export Local
Depreciation on all assets 83.13% 16.87%

Earnings per share

The Company presents earnings per share (EPS| data for its ordinary shares. EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or lass
attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the
period.

Dividend and other appropriations

Dividend to the shareholders is recognized in the period in which it is daclared and other appropriations ars recognized in the
period inwhich these are approved by the Board of Directors.
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INVESTMENTS
At fair value through other comprehensive income [FVTOCH)
Equity securities - listed
At fair value through profit or loss (FYTPL)
Equity securities - listed
Mutual funds - listed
81 FVTOCI - Equity Securities
Number of Shares
2019 2018
108,601 108,707 The Searle Company Ltd.
& 100 Shell Pakistan Ltd.
1,280 - Indus Mator Company Ltd
H 500 Aftock Petreleum Ltd,
550 500 Engro Corperation Ltd.
- 503 Pakistan Oilfields Ltd.
1,150 1,000 Pakistan Petroleum Ltd.
= 6,000 Abbot Laboraties Pakistan Ltd
8.2  FVTPL - Equity securities
Number of Shares
2019 2018
243215 11,720 The Searle Company Ltd.
140 - Indus Motor Company Ltd
150 Abbot Laboraties Pakistan Ltd
4,000 AGP Limited
1,500 Sui Nothern Gas Pipe Line Limited
6,000 Pakistan State Oil Co. Ltd.
8.2.1 FVTPL-Mutual Funds
Number of Units
2019 2018
6,963 7,382 CDC - Trustee AKD Opportunity Fund

Note
81 17,769,756 42,052,371
82 3,717,501 6,457,040
821 459,570 611,566
21,346,826 49,160,977
2019 2018
Rupees Rupees
15,916,564 36,906,027
= 31608
1,541,018 1
= 294,995
146,080 156,930
- 337,910
166,095 214,900
& 4,110,000
17,769,756 42,052,371
3,548,952 3,978,940
168,543 -
102,750
355,160
150,330
1,505,860
3,717,501 6,497,040
2019 2018
Rupees Rupees
459,570 611,566
459,570 611,566
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9.1

STOCK IN TRADE Nate
Raw material

Work-in-process

Finished goods a1

Finished goads
Finiched stock

Finished stock in transit
Scrap / Left over stock

The finished goods includes left over stock of Rs 2,770 (2018: 3.89M) recorded at NRV
TRADE DEBTS - CONSIDERED 600D

Fareign - secured, considered gaod

Gain an translation of export dabtars

Local - unsecured
- Considered good
- Considered doubtiul

Less: Provision for bad debts 10.2
10.2

101 Reconciliation of provision for impalrment of trade debts
Opening provision
Provision for the year
Reversal of provision

102 Age analysis of trade debts is as follovis:
Not yet dus
Past dua
= Cto3months
= 3toé months
= 6to 12 months
= Above 12 months

LOANS AND ADVANCES
Loan to employees - Long term partian - unsecured, considered goad

Loan to employees 1.1
Less: eurrent portion of loan te employees

Short term Advances - unsecured, considered good
Advance to contractor and supplier

Current partion of advances to emplovees
Prepayments

2019 2018
Rupees Rupees
26,710,382 15,863,455
59,404,553 28,494,071
34,285,071 6,261,783

120,400,006 50,618,309

20,781,706 2,364,068

10,724,605 =
2,778,760 3,897,715

34,285,071 6,261,783

1,159,450
36,517,285

10,875,507 32,792,845
1,236,162 1,286,162

12,111,669 34,079,007
(1,236,162} {1,285,162)
54,580,348 69,310,130

1,286,162 2,255,364

(969,202)

86,162

51,044,447 67,050,918
3,535,901 -

- 537,815

1721397

54,580,348 69,310,130

1,267,500 877,500
(564,500) 1877,500)
703,000 -
3,422,711 1,528,057
877,500
500 830
Emeenn _ aasesr

111 The unsecured loans to employees are granted in accordance with the terms of employment. Loans are recoverable in
monthly installments over a period ranging between 3 1o § years and are interest free. The outstanding balance as at June

30, 2019 pertains to a period between 1 - 2 years.
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2019 2018
Note Rupess Rupess
12, OTHER RECEIVABLES
Sales tax refundable 2543021 -
Export rebiste receivables. 2,501,493 1,655,433
Research and development receivable 121 13,056,054 5,950,768
Other receivable 682,173 627,308

18,887,741 11,373,510

121 According to the nobification number 1 (42-8) TID/IE - TR issued on August 031d, 2018 The duty drawback under this order shall be allawe for the
shipments made fram the July s, 2018 ta June 30th, 2021, the Camaany is eligible to duty drawback on expart sales of manufactursd praducts at
the rate of 7%.

Out of 7%, Afty percent (50%] of the rate of drawback Is provided without further cenditons. But the remaining fifty pereent (50%) of the rate of
drawback is provided on achisving 10% Increase In exports during the current year 2008-19 a5 compared to the base year 2017-18 of xports In

financlal yzar 2018 20 as compared to financial year 2018 18 or exparts in finanial year 2020-21 25 compared to finandal year 2013-20.

Hourever, as a matter of prudence, the Company has recarded the provision anly 2.03% an 100% sales durng the current year.

208 2018
13, CASH AND BANK BALANCES Rupeas Rupeas
Cash in hand 100,000 B

‘With banks i
- Treasures call accounts (deposit accounts) EER] 3,834,447
- Cumentaccaunts 138,350
4,082,797 3.161,962
Secunty depasit 71 (1,500,000) (1,500,0001
2,682,797 1661962

131 Depost accounts carmy profit of 4 5%-6.10% per annum {3018: £ 50% per annum}

14, I1SSUED, SUBSCRIBED & PAID-UP CAPITAL

Rutharized share capital

20,000,000 Ordinary Shares of fs. 10/- zach 200,000,000 200,000,000

tssued, subscribed and paid-up share capltal
Number of Shares

2019 2018
5,000,000 3,000,000 Ordinary shares of Rs 10/ asch fully paid in cash, 30,060,000 30,000,000
225,000 225,000 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10/ each issued as bonus shares 2,250,000 2,250,000
6,450,000 BAE0,000 Right shares of As. 10/- each fully paid i cash £4,500,000 64,500,000
5,675,000 675,000 6,750,000 6,750,000

1S, LIABILITIES AGAINST ASSETS SUBIECT TO FINANCE LEASE

Up to ane year 151 401,891 -
Later than ane year and nat later then five years 152 2,048,504 -
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e 7013 e 7018
Minium Present vameof | L e Prasent Value of
Leasa Minimum Lease o ; Financial Charges | Minimum Lease
Paymants. mont avmants aymaont
Fupres
Mot fater than one vear 560,798 158,887 01,891 - -
Later than ore year but not later
than five years 2,391 886 3az.082 2018504 - - -
3553,974 561970 3,456,955 = = =

The abote represents fnance

38, 3633 In manthly Intal nents and Is subject ta annual KIBOR 12K+2.53 & hnance charge rates 10.95%

SHORT TERR FINANCE UNGER MARK-UP ARRANGEMENT

Rurning fnance faciliey
Expiart refinanes facility
Discaunt sgainst local LC

161 LimitRe & mi

Securad 2
(2018 Re 1007
mark-up s equal 15 3 Months KIBOR + 2 5% pa {301

162 LimitRs, 29 million,

it documants and persanal

Nate

161
6.2

Buarantass of Oirecters af th
1 5 Mantha FIBON + 2 554 ], The faciiny s rerewnbie ane s valid #l e 30, 2010

2008
Runoes
5,208 632
59,000,000
4.249,522
9,158,154

e tmolhmcationcharas svessvochnd oy table pectmen by Actory preerty ) Ploy & FAA. TG Hacects oyt
o) with 503 marginl, and lsn aver s

Iemse sntered into vl Bank Al-Habib fof lesse of motar vehicle. The liability under the agreerment i payable by August

0;
Pupees

5,395,451
13,200,600

19,195,381

s o s 1820

& Campany. The rate of

Setiingd ex ool oo of an e ivor si0ohd A1 el itabia s Hasen (ver Ttory prolerty et § RN, SITE, KAcbeh sineinting o R

lon 2018 f5. 100 million) (with 50% margin], and

lien over s

ert documents

2nd personal

guarantess of directors of the Com)

pany. The rate of

T 16 AA4L1 5 5 PaGAIRE ISR + L% i [AEE 3 Khenthe SIBOR 5 L B} Tho Tochiey (¢ ranaussta And 1o wald L e 30, 2008 an alts

Iing are off limit 30 million of the dlo

CREDITORS, ACCRUED AND GTHER PAYABLES

Craditrs
Acerued expenses

Campenasted absences payable
ather furd peysble

wiarkers’ profit narcipation fund
Waarkers welfare fung

Cantract iability

[ e, .

Sales v payable

Payable 1o director

Others
1714 Other fund payable
Provident fund
EOBI pavable
172 Werkers' profit participation fund
Opering belance
Pronssien for the year
Less: Payments nade during the year
TAXATION
ad

Frior year

a8

of the Company stiracts minimuim Lax under secFon 133 af the Incoms Tax Ordinance, 2001 and its cxpo

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITARENTS
cammitments

& periad of lure 30, 2018

EEX]
172

Commibments undes letters of credit as st June 30, 2019 amounted Lo fs. 22,110,000 (2018: K. 36,517,185}

az0.075

295,073

2018
Rupees

2,162,000
333,533

 eassesio __ asessss

ag1.732

a11.z30
3862

B 7T ST L 0

4;1 312
nss ooe 331 arz

1,786,120
1994,033)

[—

26118976
{2.510,930]

510,990

31,607,985 12.330,7

331,117

—rrev

— PR,

22163051
13,932,308

12,923,308

i prafit
The numerlcal raconcilistion berwaen the avarage e rate and spplicable ta rate has not bean presentad (n thess fAnanclal stotements as the total

sles fall under final tax rogime
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0. WETSALES ExFoRT LacAL TOTAL
-m--m--:n- T TS I TC N TR
Nate Supees

ot 376708338 202.0m.941 - 376,708,338 202,070,941
Sales lncal 200 % THEERG 183,070,585 76,858,624 183,070,393
Seles discount (11,708,232} - (761,325 {362,620} (:2470,557) (362,620)
Export rebstes 2834718 1515832 B 1,515,832
EportAEn 7665517 7072483 s 7,665,917 7,072,483
R D Commssion (548,074} 135.856) - (598,074) {135,956
ETETTS 533 96,107,395 193,707,773 gL, Z50.775
200 Sales local
Local - . 62593884 189,510,200
others 1841 2 13,502,188 4434803
- - 386172 394,045,142 1,335,172 84,045,142
salas tax Local E E 5746292 10,730,150 5,746,207 10,730,190
Salas tax athors L 256 254,558 781,256 254,559
- - 527,50 10,974,748 5527508 0,974,748
z . 7 T XTI T

38.1.30thers include scrap sales amounting (o Bs. 1,741 B0 (Z018: As. 772.983)

ettt

21, COSTOF G0ODS $0LD
Row and packing material consumed
Coening stock 8,492,779 3,621,684 7370676 1,418,085 15,883,455 5,038,738
Purchases 215.017.099 100,572,870 43,629,290 67,531.690 58,656,385 169,604,760
Clusing stoek 122,205,533} (8,492,779} 14,505,450 (7,370,676) 26,710,382 115,863,455
201,305,542 56101,775 38503516 81,679,288 247,408,258 177,781,008
Satarles, allawances and benefits 5,505,695 FEEETE] 7.205,73% 11736458 32,709,357 75,238,570
Provident fund contribution 172,090 319,253 1,025,927 687,109
Knitting charges 1402822 2165823 818,174 4,661,365
Dyeing and other sharges 11,226,847 22,2 67,077,181 47,973,032
Embroldery / Printing cherges 1209277 6,359,975 7,760,272 13,774,274
Stitehing chorges 10,386,278 25,685,150 61,572,630 1,725,505
Fuel and power 628,385 142,01 as18,848 2,888,343
commun cation 56635 163596 335,681 352,101
Pastage & telegrams 76512 145319 53,495 312,761
Repuaics and maintenance 248,550 0989 1479.128 1202418
Staff walfars and medical axpensos 604 30,511 134,008 85,037
Maotor vehiele and eoneyance 297,320 484,214 1,754,528 1,042,148
Insurance 51487 135,882 364,445 232,451
Oeprecia a2 377,756 57,142 2,239,248 1,804,778
Cearing and forvarding - 5,022,390 1,509,677
Freight, octral and cartage 3287311 3,589,193 19,543,641 2722649
Export develapment charges - 435,668 507,338
Factary complianca expenses 8BA31 234,008 524,142 503,631
Warketing xpenses - - 23,824 - 51275
Travelling expenses aa2755 171,083 30891 1,013,798 664,377
Cthers 2,856.542 38,085 1,073,886 2,353,637 11,478
192308274 55,083,050 37,612,208 60,778,245 30,117,482 175,871,295
Work-in-process
Caening stock TEIAELT 155,169 237851 14,180,821 28,494,071 12,584,865
clasing stork 22,382.096) 461481 37,012,457 23,879,454 59,404,553 494,071
117,767,279} (5211367} 113,143,205 9,698,530} (30,310,482 115,309,506
€ost of goodts manufacturad 375,843,937 184,983,538 A5 152.759,18% 347,016,458 339742732
Finished goods
Cpening stock 3352355 L1107 3009.428 a16976 6,261,783 2,539,054
Clusing stork 25,500,655, 3,352,355 5,764,415 2 50,28 34,285,071 261,783)
(25148233 (L3027 12,872,585 (2.082.952) (28,023, 288) (2.322,728)
£OST OF GOODS SOLD 350,695,638 183,743,261 68207582 150.676.742 418,993.170 334,420,000
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32, ROMINISTRATIVE AND SELUNG EXPENSES

EXPORT I LOCAL 1[ TOTAL
Note For) EITT T T | T FT)
Tpees
Sileies, 3llmansss sns anefity 1209156 5121708 2455612 sanzem 14554268 11,634,591
Provident fund corntribution 512,802 104,095 Moo 615,987 516,631
Commimication 461353 ;e 181353 s54358
Pasiage & telegrams 9812 5080 2305 1750
St walfare and acical expenses a0 71434 55,519 4400
Mator vehicls and eonvepance. 93,785 181,605 440,558 1076388
Repair and maintenznce s1ms 12388 47058 a0
Legal and prafessional charses 503353 10167 180435 605380
Al tors’ romuneratian 1 383585 57576 155,588 31,2600
Dapracianon 612 1421780 2552 556,445 171035
Printing and statonery 22390 o 139573 289,10
Adfvertsement and pubicicy 128105 6000 97 156,105
Fewm, subséription and periodicals 534,743 116838 336,776 51,391
et r2te and taues - - 6280 -
Insurance 181 862 36911 43210 218,780
Others. 30333 ET 08,411 438265
TR0z S 7T YT T
W19 2018
221 Auditors” Remuneration Rupees Rupoes
Annual audit 1E7,500 187,500
Half yeary ravew 0000 70000
Qut o pocket axpensss man o500
Sales tak on awd(tand review fee 20,288 20,600
16381 332500
23 OTHER INCOME } {LDSS) EXpORT I LoChL 1] ToTAL
015 o || s | wm || e P
Income From Financial Assets
Prafit on bark aceounts 25457 7664 45,70 66517 mas U361
Divsdend income 21 1,186,258 90682 24760 eTr4mL 1,417,018 1458123
Fachange gain - net 5783503 2491720 H B 5,783,623 2,492,730
Dther income 2E264 = 5736 34,000 =
Las on dispasal of investment - net 22 [ERTRE LR Y ] (934 (0183503 11,744,843} (21817332
Reversal of prow st doubitful debts
el bt 5 . . 000 25,000 50,000 25,000
n 0 s rancy
Sainon frand oE el crpe iy el 5413861 1358450 - - 5,314,961 1158450
Income From Non-Financial Assets
[Loss}fgain an disaosal of property, plant and
equipment 15,161 0820 (L) G161 16,203 12600
13,082.354 (7,153,393 BB 13,352,804) 31,125,178 (16.506,2761
231 Dividend income
FVTON (shares hedd ot eparting date) 0 053
FVTOO (shares dispased during ih period) 01,785
P 384,350
1‘11““
232 Loss on dipesal of investment
-Ouered securies
Ml funds
1,744,343} 17,850,876
FuToc
~Queted securities - 18.025.4551
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24, FINANCE COST [ EXPORT || LOCAL 1] TOTAL
| 2013 I 2008 ] 2019 I 2o ] 2019
L Runees
Markup an export refinance 785535 567532 161460 492547 956,955 1.060.079
Miark-ug o runining finance 559,985 Fr BN 23348 673,602 12981
Bank ciarges on excart remittances - 2am15 - - - 2435915
gank charges 1408220 sa20 285,40 As3637 997857
Mark-up an liablity sgainst asser subjeet i finance
lease 143484 - 19.2m - -
rokarage and sthar charges. 135,234 mEn 2407 237428 11001
Wiarkeug o VTS shares aiazsl 7284 1,083 240855 s17.950
e markup - - 1035676 00,187 200967
EET) EXTERE] 1735318 473,087 19,150
5. OTHER CHARGES
Workers' profit pariopanion fund 656,450 49,487 13637 432625 2,087 31112
Workers' welfare fund 2021l 15,025 50,782 164397 300983 353422
T 7| B Y 1 S 1 N
26, SEGMENT INFORMATION
Asegment is 3 distinguishable camponent of the company that is engaged in b i o ey d nd it It farl
reviewad by the Company's Chief Operating Desislon Maker to make dedishon sbeut resourees ta be allocated e the segment and assess its perfermance. Further, diserete financial
information i vaBatle forcach seamern,
Gased an imermal uced and scld, the Company is arganized into the follawing twa onerating segments
Evpert
woeal
Menagement momtors the saerating results of above mentioned segments separately for the purpose of making decisions sbeut resowrces to be 2llacated snd of assessing
perlos mance.
Searent revenus and sEment resultfor the year are as ollows:
LGCAL 1] TaTAL
1018 2038 201z ] 2015
Rupees
Net Sales 374,951 668 210,523,000 75,107,299 182,707,773 451,098,967 193,230,773
Cost af goads sald (350,695.638] {68.297.532) (150.676,741) 18, {334.420.,003}
Gross praftt 22,286,030 7,809,767 T 32,105,797 58,810,770
Adrministrative and selling sspenies 18,10 593) Bermd (1698356 (21776.647) (17,001,302)
Segment resulls 6,183,437 4135713 24131675 10,329,150 41,509,468
e incame {{ass) 11082280 {2353.283) 4589 (9381889 119,178 (16,506,278}
Uniealized gain f{loss) on revaluation of (352,929) (205,564} 5301 (18,7521 (a2a,559) 384,716
Instments held for trading
(3,485,119 {4,423,168) (1,735,218 {1873,087] {5,192,038) {6.206,350}
Other charges (a08861] |B87,813) (158,415) (s97.021] 1,093,080) {1,254,934}
Profit befare tawation fram continuing operatian 12,559,012 5,207,356 2189641 12229934 14,748,652 17337290
Taxation
Current (a.ussm‘ 105,2301 | LA .unmm (4510,559] C!.sﬂ.sw
Brioe - -
(2748217 2,305,230) CeLaal (1A (4510,9%0) {3:332308)
Brofit after tavation fram contining opesation EXTET) a0iAe. _ iATies  Jgamdst __jogpess jdoiser
2019 206
7, BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE Rupees Rupers
Earnings per share - hasic and diuted
Pratit after tavation 10,237 662 13 A04 587
Number of erdinary shares. 8475000 2675000
Famnings per share 105 139
28, CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balznces 3 1661862
Running Fnance facllicy 161 [59u~3 432 5,995 461
(5.22553) 14,353,138}
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29, REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTOR AND EXECUTIVES
The aparegatz amount charged in the sczounts for remuneration, Including all benafits 2 the Chiet executive, Director and Executives of the Company are as follows:

2018

Directors I Chief Executive

Exccutives | Directors I Chied Executive || Exceytives

Rupaes

Basic slary 1,107,097 3ET0I6E i 1033548 3,135,806

Alowzncss 08,901 2138032 - 568,452 1,718,104

Comspany's eantributian i provident fund 32,258 3581 - 85135 260484 &
Medical expenses 58,756 10127 = 45,242 58101

Fes E z - &

Managerial ramuneratian - - - -

Commission o« bors 677 3581 45242 58

nature ef benefit -
Other pevguisites and benefits in cash or in lind stating their - - . . - -
nature and, where

1,993,768 6,755,289 B 1,780,613 5,435,166 2
1 1 1 1

Number of persans) [ o

2.0 A s of B 147,000 (2018: Re. 65,000 vias paic Baing fee for attending the Board of Directors’ maeting
292 Chisf execuive and Other Executives are provided with free use of Company malntained cars, Thay are alsc enticied for medics| facifity to the excent of reimbursemant
of aetual expendilure ns ather banefits in aecordance with their terms of employment

30, TRANSACTIONS WATH RELATED PARTIES

Al transsctions invalving related parties arising in the normal caurse of business are candusted at commesclal terms anl canditions, The redated parties comprlse staff

retirement funds, di related parties, other than those disclosed dlsewhere In these finanelal statements, arc follows:
2019 2018
Bakances: Rupees Rupees
Pravdent Fund - cutstanding batance 481,732 311830
Advance ta CEO 3 130,302
R
Transactions:
Advance to CEQ
Opening balance 13302 103538
Paid advance during the year 653230 150,600
763,532 254,138
Retund advance during the year 7835300 6]
- 130,302
Contribustion ta staff retirement bensfit plans 1612814 1,203,746
ey managaiment persnnel’s ramunertion and other banefits 29 1I8LEM 5430140

30.1. PROVIDEMT FUND RELATED DISCLOSURES

tallawing inf based on latest un-zudited fi f fund:
Size of the fund- (ot assels 5.836,004 5,305,437
Percentage of invesment made 2125% 040
Falr walue of Investments 1,261,638 2,674,037
Cost of aboue Investments 3 2,000,000
The breakup of fair value of investment s; 013 2018 2019 2018
Percentsge  Percentage Rupees Rupees
COC-Trustze AXD Opportunity Fund 0,004 0024 - 535,667
AKD Istamic [ncome Fund 00K 37.43% - 1,000,847
8ank Al Habib Munata Fund 78,264 a254% 1,002,000 L1375
Investment in Shares 20.74% Dom% 261,640 -
100.00% 100.00% 1,261,640 2,674,037
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31 FINANCIAL INSTRUSENTS BY CATEGDRY

Jne 302018
A At Cost PR Aoa Otk ]
FINBMNCIAL ASSETS.
Cash s cash equilent TgEMT 5 =
Invasmerds . L BaCTS
Lona term et Lis2m : =
Mussara fity >
Trade debls - cansidered gaod
Loarsand stunces
Ctver csirabies - i X
Tota Frascil Asses ELsAlE ERiEY PRI z
Juse 30, 2019
FINANCIAL LABAITIES
ity gaint 3t sbjst  nanca e 2 2
Shurt 6 fncnce undoe k- e rangeeneal - - st
Ceitrs,atsued and ctbe pabes 2 2 d 5
Total Firame|al Lishilties. - - - 33,558,081
30,08
Qe Bl
At Arotied Cost PR AT0G e
FNAICIAL ASETS
Cah ol cih et 1661962 " .
Inwestments & 61830 23,011,500
Langtem deputs 15w 7
#EF ot
Trade debts - comsered gaod @015
Laaesand stuces Frar
Total Firmeinl Asseds AL, ﬁ ﬁ Bzl i'
FNAICIAL LAESITIES
Liability against assets sject to finance lease.
Short tenm finance under mark-up arrangement : : 19,195 261
Crtars acrues nd cher el . . 3
Total iaecil Usalies = B = St
3 FIRNCAL MK AANAGEMENT
The B ofDiectirs ofthe Compte have avral resvans bl fo the estobfrment and oweright o e The Board s o retponsbl oping rd maritareg
the Company's risk management palicies.
I Gt ity Gy Y3 31 ol g .ol 3 s Gl g o
eectsenthe Company's rond performnce
m1 Cefthe
et the 1tk that e party 0. I th st part by el The Company'scrdit 1k atributabe o s
bk A agant e of reit,The i ko i unds s e becas counterparfes
e banks withreasnatly High et rtings.
I Espoure taereditrsh
The of redit exposive. Th ek a the cate af reparing s 2 olws:
1
fupers
Rasndalpset:
Tade debts sas0e
r— a7l
Otherrecaiatbes s
Sarkbulaniss 432390
T2 FrTs)
Th rad bt ae dus fram i and eca custernrs for eart and Mo of e ez cuternrsare cermedagaer leens ef et Management asess
mg eredit qualiy of Il and fareign customers, taking inlo ¢court thel financkal pesifon, past ml\znm anel ther Tackars. Far hank balances, fivancial institutions with strang ereeit ratings are arceped
uith banks 4 sginet el P halaess
The Eompany always measures the loss Heseanee for rad debts 2 an amaunt ol ta Helimes ELL sk i The asses an laeal 1
R 0 I o o ol o o e e T st e s 1 s gl e s
ndtryin A beth thecuert i sl as the
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B2 Market Rk
Maret ik o or o et pices
i ey,
W Cneyisk
i ihatine e e or wancl nerumantail

raisactors o ecshibles 300 peyales 1t el T gDt ol e
Firanial et ko P 43,704 0L 201815 36,5025 which v subjec 1 cmncy ik
Wi bt ik
" et et rates. The K torg o ierest

bering franeie
Houeeer, C beann e 15 raterisk Aggliable misrest rate for
ranelal ietruments fave bz It I respieciee s

Fair vl sarsisty ansdyss o Bed ol st rmes.

fose Treref parting ettt e
Aatemantof profl orose
o o sy s b il raeinstruments

P ; oeloss b, 18 il 18R, 918l
e e T
fi Otherprice rsk.
T ot f QUTENCY
ridk, whether tha i1 ratrument o It 1
313 Liquidity Risk
Lenidlt visk e the sisk thak the Compeny il encousrter difficuly in meeting chligations assorizted with financial iabilitizs, The Company manages iguidity fisk by maintzinire sufficient rash arnd cash
squlents, he olowing aturvies o e
[ D sakance shaat assiets and Eadilities;
INTEREST/MARK- UP BEARMNG
et rateof aerest | Watartyup soane| Moty afer Totsl
subtatal
. hange year one ear
Fnanial assets:
Long term deposits 2,052,600 2052600 2,052,600
Investments 4177071 10768756 146,526 1,346,826
Trade debts . . B . 54,580,348 - 54,580,348 54.500,348
Other recelvables - - - 18,881,741 - 1882040 18,882,741
ash and ank bolaes e e ssmur 158350 138350 o
38447 T 778510 13,823 356 97,500,866 11,545,312
Finandial liabiities:
Longtem Ioblogsst 1 wearIBOM 154 g e 2450755 & s 2455
ausets subject ta firance
o e foanee nder 3 Wonths MIBOR 12358
h it 6P rate 41%
AR TN ” 158150 150154 . 6158150
Creditons, scorued and other pavebles 4358530 - 4,398,930 $4.398,530
Unclaimed dividand . - . 1531 - 1513125 1513105
ST o o 13 - B s
Sensitivty gap 150,015,528 2.0t8.504] (152,068,432 76,155,335 1882235 607701 (55986851

(51 0 i 2 mison.
il Om batance shest assets and Gabilities:
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Btecthverate ot imtersst | Mty uptoone | Matwrryaher | | sty uptoone | Matwityater | Tatal
% Range % year oneyear yexr oneyaar
Financial zssets:
Long term depasis - - - 15000 1500000 1,500,000
Long term investments. 3 E & IRIB3IM 230150 19238520 873980
Tras dets - - - - 310130 - 69316130 831013
Cther receiables 11,233510 - 11213510 11,273,510
Cash and bank balances 450 s 342742 2530 - 5% 3,161,962
3,127,432 * 3,127,430 105,845 494 24,511,500 131, 334 134,485 426
Finacia Nabltes:
Megiurm term finance. 1 year F1BOR# 2.5% - - £t
Shortterm Fnance under 3 Months KIBOR +255 &
mark-up sremgement S8R e 1% s . 8 . 18195380
Creditors, accrud and other pyables 5 . 74035 754 T80 74,035,784
Undaimed dviend . - 135825 - L1552 131583
19,185,450 - 15,155,460 5351607 - 75,351,601 547,067
Sensidity gan 15 - 085 TLABAEE 5150 358 59538.360

(4 Off balance shect iabites as stated n note 19 amounts to Rs.36.52 mian,
324 Capital Risk Management
The abjective of the Company when managing capital, i e., its shareholders’ equity, 's to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern so that
it £3n continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefite for other stakeholdars; and ta maintain a strong capltzl base to support the
sustained develapment of its businesses.
The capital structure of the Company is equity based. It has financed all its projects and business expansions through equity financing and naver
resorted on debt financing, Hawever, the Campany has availed shart-term borrowing for worklng capital purposes anly.
33, FAIRVALUE OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Fair value Is the prica that would be received to sell an asset or pald to transfer a liability In an arderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date.
The carrying values of all financial assets and liabilities reflected in the financial statements approximate their fair values.
Falr value hierarchy
The following table provides an analysis of financ/al Instruments that are measured subseguent to initfial recognition at falr value, grouped Into Levels 1ta
3 hased on the degree to which the fair value is shservable.

Level 1 fair vall are thase derived fram quated justed) in act identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the agset or
liability, either directly (i.2. s pricest or indirectly {L.e. derived from prices),

Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from valuation technigues that include inputs for the asset or liabllity that are not based on observable
market data (unchseruable inputs]

s 2t June 30, 2019, the Company has no material level 1, 2 or 3 assets or | abilities except equity instruements disclosed at level 1 of fair value hierarchy.
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34, PRODUCTION CAPACITY 01 2018
Istalleg capacity Pes.) 1300000 100,000
Actual production {Pes.) 382061 395,501

Itis offcultto describe precisely the production canacity in the textile industry sinca it fluctuates widely depending on verious factors such a5 count of
Vam spun, rawmaterial used, etc.

35, NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES 0 018
Number of employezs as an the date of financial stataments: 11 i
Auerage number of emplayees during the year: 160 15

36, DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FORISSUE
These financialsatements were approved by the baare of directors of he Company and authorized for ssue on September 30, 2019,

37 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
The Bogrd of Directors I their meeting held on Septamber 30, 2019 has propased a final cash dividend of Rs, 0.5 per share amounting to Rs, 4.84 million
{2018 R 0.5 per share amounting to Rs. 4 82 millian)for the year endd June 30, 2019, The anproval of the shareholders of the Company shall be obtained
atthe upcoming Annual General egting for the year ended Juna 30, 2018, The financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2019 do notincluda the
effect of the propased final cash dividend which will b2 accounted for nthe year ending June 30, 2020.

38 FIGURES
381 Figureshhave been roundzd off o the nearest of rupess.

382 Some of the previous year figures have been reclassified and re-arrangad 1o faci tate better presentation in the current year,

1o ==

WASEEM SHAFI WNAEEM SHAFI JAVED KHAN
Chairman Chief Executive Officer Director | CFO
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PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING AS AT JUNE 30, 2019

No Of Shareholders

Shareholdings'Slab

Total Shares Held

255 1 to 100 7,302
223 101 to 500 58,850
625 501 to 1000 351,720
90 1001 to 5000 206,522
25 5001 to 10000 192,326
& 10001 to 15000 83,735
& 15001 to 20000 102,345
10 20001 to 25000 225,978
3 25001 to 30000 82,330
1 30001 to 35000 33,658
2 35001 to 40000 75,468
4 40001 to 45000 173,000
3 45001 to 50000 148,054
2 50001 to 55000 105,750
1 60001 to 65000 63,531
2 70001 to 75000 145,132
1 85001 to 90000 87,000
1 90001 to 95000 92,000
1 100001 to 105000 100,382
2 105001 to 110000 217,599
1 110001 to 115000 113,686
1 130001 to 135000 132,225
1 155001 to 160000 158,500
1 160001 to 165000 162,780
1 235001 to 240000 238,000
1 300001 to 305000 300,466
1 365001 to 370000 368,571
1 425001 to 430000 430,000
1 610001 to 615000 611,541
1 665001 to 670000 669,792
1 830001 to 835000 832,153
1 895001 to 900000 896,461
1 2205001 to 2210000 2,208,143
1277 9,675,000
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| PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING AS AT JUNE 30, 2019

Categories of Shareholders Shareholders Shares Held Percentage
Directors and their spouse(s) and minor children
NAEEM AHMED SHAFI 5 844,044 872
HUMAIRA SHAF| 3 1,068,742 11.05
WASEEM SHAFI 2 43233 0.45
JAVED KHAN 73 8,089 0.08
MUHAMMAD SHAFI 1 16,125 0.17
BUSHRA SHAFI 1 3,870 0.04
MOHAMMAD SAJID HUSSAIN 1 1,500 0.02
SALEHA MAIID 1 750 0.01
MUDASSIR HABIB KHAN 1 1,500 002
Associated Companies, undertakings and related parties 0 - -
Executives - -
Public Sector Companies and Corporations. 1 67 0.00
Banks, development finance institutions, non-banking finance companies,
insurance companies, takaful, modarabas and pension funds 4 1,239,546 1281
Mutual Funds - -
General Public
a. Local 1250 6,406,865 66.22
Foreign Investar - - -
OTHERS 5 40,668 042
Totals 1277 8,675,000 100.00
Share holders holding 5% or more Shares Held  Percentage
RASHID ABDULLA 2,208,143 18
NAEEM AHMED SHAFI 844,044 2]
HUMAIRA SHAF| 1,068,742 11.05
FIRST UDL MODARABA 832,153 8.60
KHALID MALIK 611,541 6.32
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| PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING AS AT JUNE 30, 2019

S.No.  Folioh Name of shareholder Number of shares_Percentage
Directors and their spause(s) and minar children
1 3041 MAEEM AHMED SHAFI 750 001
2 NAEEM SHAFI 669,792 692
3 520 MAEEM AHMED SHAFI 1722 0.02
4 01826-52175  MAEEM AHMED SHAFI 4,000 0.08
5 03277-44659 MNAEEM AHMED SHAFI 162,780 188
6 19 HUMAIRA SHAFI 896,461 9.27
7 2910 HUMAIRA SHAFI 63531 066
4 01826-12062  HUMAIRA SHAFI 108,750 112
& 1 WASEEM SHAFI 39468 041
10 3025 WASEEM SHAFI 3,65 004
1 2 IAVED KHAN 1,500 0.02
12 10629-132285  JAVED KHAN 6,589 0.07
13 2911 MUHAMMAD SHAFI 16125 017
14 BUSHRA SHAFI 3,870 0.04
15 MOHAMMAD SAIID HUSSAIN 1,500 0.02
16 SALEHA MAID 750 0.0
17 MUDASSIR HABIB KHAN 1,500 0.02
17 1,987,853 20.55
nd related parties
HIL
o F =
Executive
NIL
1 03869-26 NATIQNAL BANK OF PAKISTAN a7 0.00
1 67 0.00
Banks, finance banking fi takatul, d pension funds.
1 02139-29 PREMIER INSURANCE LIMITED 158,500 164
2 0211321 FIRST EQUITY MODARABA 238,000 245
3 032771651 FIRST UDL MODARABA 212,153 260
4 0327778335 TRUSTEE NATIONAL BAMK OF PAKISTAN EMPLOYEES DENSION FUND 10,893 011
3 1239545 1281
Mutual Funds
NIL
Eoreign Investor
NIL
Qthers
1 03277-82127  TRUSTEE NATIONAL BANK OF PAKISTAN EMP BENEVOLENT FUIND TRUST 0.00
2 02113-3843  APEX FINANCIAL SERVICES (PUT.) LIMITED 013
3 0572824 STOCK STREET (PRIVATE) LUMITED 0oL
a 03277-80483  TRUSTEES OF FIRST UDL MODARABA STAFF PROVIDENT FUND: 0.20
5 02113-3850  CAPITAL FINANCIAL SERVICES (PVT.) LIMITED 0.07
5 0.42
General Publiclacal 1250 66.22
Total 1277 100.00
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Consent Required

Far Annual Reports through e-mail

Dear Shareholder(s)

The securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan {SECP) through its Netification {SRO 787(1) 2014) dated 8
September 2014 has allowed the circulation of Company’s annual balance sheet and profit and loss account,
auditor's report and directors’ report etc. {Audited Annual Financial Statements) to shareholders along with

notice of Annual General Meeting (AGM) through e-mail.

Therefore, if you wish to receive company's (Audited Annual Financial Statements) along with notice of
{AGM] via - email, you are requested to provide this letter duly filled and signed to us or our Share Registrar

at their below address:

E - MAIL ADDRESS:

CNIC NUMBER:

FOLIO / CDS ACCOUNT #

M/s CDC Shave Registrar Services Limited

Share Registrar Department

€DC House, 99-B, Block ‘', S.M.CH.5,

Main Shahra-e-Faisal, Karachi-74400.

Telephone (Toll Free) 0800-23275 / Fax: (92-21) 34326053
Email: info@cdesrsl.com/website: www.cdesrsl.com

Yours sincerely
For International Knitwear Limited

G

Javed Khan

Company Secretary

SIGNATURE OF SHAREHOLDER
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E-DIVIDEND MANDATE FORM

To:
Subject: Banka account detail for payment of Dividend through electronic mode.
Dear Sir,

I, Mr./Mrs./Ms,
s/o,/b/o,w/j0

hereby authorize International Knitwear Limited to directly credit cash dividend declared by it, if any, in the
below mentioned bank account.

(i) Shareholder's Detail

Name of the Shareholder

Folio No./CDC Participants ID A/C No.

CNIC No. **

Passport No. {in case of foreign Shareholder)***

Land Line Phone Number
Cell Number

(ii) Shareholder's Bank Detail
Title of Bank Account

Bank Account Number

Bank 's Name

Branch Name and Address

It is stated that the above-mentioned information is correct and that | will intimate the changes in the
above mentioned information to the Company and the concerned Share Registrar as soon as these occur.

Signature of the Sharehalder

Notes:

The Sharehalders having phys cel shares have to address the Company Secratary KL on the sddress given below:
The Company Seeretary

Irtematianal Knfowear Linted

FEALSITE

and Sharehelders having Thelr Aceounts With CDC Share Registras Services Limiied have to 1o televant Mamiaer

*9Pleasa artach attested phatacepy of the CHIC.
***Please attach attested phatacopy of the Passport
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FORM OF PROXY
29th ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

1/We langhter/wife/hushand of . Shareholder of
International Knitwear Limited, holding______ ordinary shares hereby appoint
who 1s my. [state relationship (1f any) with the proxy; required by Government

regulations] and the son / daughter / wife / husband of , {holding

ordinary shares in the Company under FolioNo. ) [required by Government] as my
/ our proxy, to attend and vete for me / us and on my / our behalf at the Annunal General Meeting of

the Company to be held on October 28th, 2019 and / or any adjournment thereof.

Signed thi day of 2019.
Folio CDC Participant CDC Account/ No. of
No. 1D No. Sub-Account No. Shares held

Signarure over
Revenue Stamp

Witness 1 Witness 2
Signature Signanoe
Name Name
CNIC No.. CNIC No.
Address Address

Notes: 1. The proxy must be a member of the Company.

2. The signature must tally with the specimen signature/s registered with the company.

3. Ifa proxy is granted by a member who has deposited his/her shares in CDC Share
Registrar Services Limited , the proxy must be accompanied with
participant’s |D number and COC account/sub-account number along with attasted
photocopies of Computerized National Identity Card (CNIC) or the Passport of the
beneficial owner. Representatives of corporate members should bring the usual
documents reguired for such purpaose.

4. The instrument of Proxy properly completed should be deposited at the Registered
Office of the Company not less than 48 hours before the time of the meeting.
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International Knitwear Limited
F-2A/L, S.T.E., Karachi-75730 Pokistan
Phones: 32571443, 32574302-04
Fax: (021) 32564414
Web @ www.intermationalknitwear.com




